
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore 
will not take place in a physical location 

Date: Thursday, 1st October, 2020
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Rose Blaney Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

To receive declarations by Members and/ or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting). 

Members are advised however, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as any 
other interests. 

Members are reminded that they may not, by law, participate or vote in 
any discussion in a meeting on a matter in which they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest 

Members are advised that they should leave the room during consideration 
of any items of business in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest.

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2020 1 - 12

4. Executive Forward Plan 13 - 18

Public Document Pack



5. Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

6. Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 
representative 

7. Housing 

8. 2020/21 Finance Report - Quarter 1 19 - 32

9. Corporate Performance Report for Quarter 1 of 2020-2021 33 - 46

10. Task and Finish Group Updates 47 - 48

11. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 49 - 52

12. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

Membership: Councillors John Kane (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-
Bulman, Ged McGrath, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and Eileen Weir

Contacts: Direct Dial: 07385 362773
E-mail: rose.blaney@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 10 SEPTEMBER 2020

Present: Councillors John Kane, in the Chair; Felicity Wilson, James Date, 
Gemma Dinsdale, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, 
Ged McGrath, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and Eileen Weir

Officers: James Young (Scrutiny Officer), Amanda Starr (Strategic Housing & 
Social Inclusion Manager), Julie Friend (Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer), 
Heather Holmes (Customer Services Team leader), Clive Willoughby (Democratic 
Services Officer) and Rose Blaney (Electoral and Democratic Services Officer)

OSC108 Apologies for Absence 

There were no apologies received.

OSC109 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

There were no declarations of interests made.

OSC110 Minutes of the meeting held on 6th August 2020 

Councillor Felicity Wilson requested that the minutes from the last Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meeting on Thursday 6 August, be amended to 
show her apologies rather than absent due to technical difficulties, she was able 
to view the meeting online but not able to join. Clarification was also provided 
on the legal position regarding attendance at virtual meetings and the process 
for “being seen and heard by others” as well guidance on using cameras in 
meetings.

Councillor Ged McGrath requested that the minutes from the last meeting also 
be updated to reflect his interest in joining the Recycling Task and Finish Group.

Councillor Sam Pollen informed the Committee about being provided an update 
by the Scrutiny Officer on the meeting with Sellafield, but noted that a meeting 
still needs to be set up regarding the voluntary living wage. The Scrutiny Officer 
will continue to follow up on this issue.

Councillor Pollen also asked for an update on the state of the Nuclear Position 
Statements, as they were not an agenda item at this meeting as it had been 
agreed in the previous minutes. The Scrutiny Officer informed the Committee 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



that the matter was followed after the meeting, but the request was not 
acknowledged, meaning that the statements could not be an agenda item for 
this meeting. Following some further discussion between Councillors on the 
matter the Scrutiny Officer confirmed, with the Chair’s agreement, that the 
Nuclear Position Statements would be an agenda item at the next meeting.

RESOLVED – That,

a) The minutes of the meeting held on 6 August 2020 be signed by the Chair 
as a correct record, with one member abstaining from the vote as they 
had given their apologies to the previous meeting, subject to;

 The minutes be updated to include Councillor Felicity Wilson as 
apologies received.

 The minutes be updated to include Councillor Ged McGrath’s 
interest in joining the Recycling Task and Finish Group.

b) The Scrutiny Officer follow up with the portfolio holder to provide an 
update to Councillor Pollen regarding the meeting with Sellafield.

c) The Nuclear Position Statements be an agenda item at the next meeting.

OSC111 Executive Forward Plan 

There was a lengthy discussion held by all committee members as to topics on 
the Executive Forward Plan that they would like to be brought to OSC. There 
was a lengthy discussion held by all committee members as to topics on the 
Executive Forward Plan that they would like to be brought to OSC.

Councillor Jeanette Forster requested further information on the Disposal of 
Land and Copeland Community Fund.

Councillor Jeffrey Hailes requested further information on the Whitehaven 
Future Burial Capacity. Members were informed that the Executive agenda in 
which this team was to be included, was due to be published on 14th September 
2020.

Councillor Pollen noted topics such as; the Local Plan (which had been brought 
to Full Council to move forward to the consultation period following briefings by 
officers), Copeland Community Fund (including concerns regarding; levels of 
funding, where the funding comes from, who receives the funding and how to 
apply for funding), Beacon Update, Disposal of Land, Climate Action Plan 
(suggesting that becomes a task and group), Copeland Vision 2040 (and how it 
has been impacted by the current pandemic), the Draft Budget, the 
Performance Plan and Accommodation. 

Page 2



The Chair clarified that there were some items that they were until after the 
Councillor Briefing being held on Tuesday 15th September to bring to OSC. 
Following that briefing members can then raise any issues with the Chair to 
become an agenda item. The Scrutiny Officer noted that the Section 151 Officer 
will be at the next OSC meeting and it can be discussed then bringing the Draft 
Budget to OSC. 

The Scrutiny Officer also gave his advice to all councillors, following Councillor 
Pollen’s question, that these subjects would be better brought as agenda items 
first before becoming a task and finish group, as that will enable the committee 
to gather as much information as possible to help with their findings. As, should 
they be brought as a task and finish group first, it could not then be abandoned 
and brought as an agenda item. The Scrutiny Officer highlighted that it was at 
the discretion of the committee to make that final decision.

Councillor McGrath commented that the Independent Remuneration Panel 
report was being brought to Full Council in February and that in previous years 
that report didn’t reflect the views of members and wondered if members 
would be able to have any input into the report. The Democratic Services Officer 
clarified that the Independent Remuneration Panel decide who they interview, 
and that we, as a council, have no input. Councillor McGrath suggested a task 
and finish group be created so that the views of members could be gathered 
into a report and given to the Remuneration Panel. Councillors Felicity Wilson 
and Eileen Weir agreed with Councillor McGrath. It was also clarified that; the 
Independent Remuneration Panel don’t always interview the Mayor and Chief 
Executive, they interview people they request to see. The recommendations 
that they make go to Full Council for Council to agree and that over the last few 
years, with last year as an exception, that recommendations have been ignored 
by Full Council. Also for clarity, it was noted that the Broadband Allowance was 
not removed but rather merged into basic councillor allowances. Following 
further discussion between Councillors and a comment by Councillor Sam 
Meteer, it was decided that the Chair would write a letter to the Mayor and the 
Chief Executive to request that a survey be created, as had previously been 
done, to gain more information from members and state that all councillors are 
available to be interviewed by the panel.

Councillor Hailes also noted the Beacon Update as an agenda item for the next 
OSC meeting, where the Scrutiny Officer noted that he could ask his question 
regarding the Beacon Café.

Page 3



Councillors Eileen Weir, Linda Jones-Bulman, Sam Meteer and Ged McGrath also 
highlighted the Disposal of Land, the Climate Action Plan, the Draft Budget and 
Copeland Community Fund (specifically the criteria).

RESOLVED: – That,

(a) The report be noted.
(b) The following items from the Executive Forward Plan be brought to OSC;

a. Whitehaven Future Burial Capacity
b. Copeland Community Fund
c. Beacon Update
d. Disposal of Land
e. Council Climate and Environment Policy
f. Climate Action Plan
g. Copeland Vision 2040
h. 2020/21 Council Performance Plan

(c) The Section 151 Officer be asked about the possibility to have more of an 
input into reviewing the Draft Budget

(d) The Chair write a letter to the Mayor and the Chief Executive to highlight 
the Committee’s willingness to be contacted to speak by the Independent 
Remuneration Panel, as well as suggest a possible survey be sent out to 
all councillors as had been done in the past.

OSC112 Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

The Chair commented that the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee had a 
meeting that was taking place at the same time as this OSC meeting, and that 
they were therefore unable to make the meeting. However, they have 
requested a copy of the minutes and highlights from the meeting so that they 
can provide an update at the next OSC meeting in October.

Councillor Wilson suggested creating two further Health and Wellbeing Task and 
Finish Groups for the North and South of the County, to then be brought 
together, considering that Health and Wellbeing is a major issue during the 
Covid-19 Pandemic. The suggestion was tabled for further discussion until 
Agenda Item 9. Councillor Pollen seconded the idea.

OSC113 Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 
representative 

STTUG’s next meeting was due to take place the following day and therefore 
there was no update to the Committee. An update will be provided at the next 

Page 4



meeting. If there are any questions or issues that members would like to raise to 
STTUG, they can email Councillor Pollen.

The Chair requested an update regarding the Voluntary Redundancy scheme, 
while taking into account the sensitivity of the information. Councillor Pollen 
agreed to include this topic as part of his update at the next meeting.

OSC114 Housing Needs Survey 

The Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer gave a presentation to Committee 
members regarding the recent Housing Needs Survey and was joined by the 
Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager to answer any questions. 
Numerous councillors thanked the officers for their presentation.

Councillor Gemma Dinsdale questioned whether the survey looked into houses 
that were vacant and up for sale or that have been up for sale for six or more 
months that have been unable to be sold. Cllr Dinsdale wondered if there was 
any way for Copeland Borough Council (CBC) to encourage builders to 
modernise properties, rather than build properties which would help the 
economy. The Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer noted that it was clear that a 
lot more of the younger generation would prefer the new houses and that, 
whilst not included within the survey, reviewing vacant homes links in with the 
work that the Empty Homes Officer is doing within the Borough and is part of 
CBC’s Strategic Housing Remit. The impact of Covid-19 is also going to need to 
be considered.

Councillor Pollen also commented on the empty homes situation in Copeland. 
He also asked if CBC had enough money for all Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) 
applications and if there is provision for those who are struggling to find 
accommodation to ensure that their housing needs are met. The Strategic 
Housing & Social Inclusion Manager clarified that for the DFGs the Council 
started the year in a positive position and have enough grant funding for the 
rest of the year. For those who are struggling to find accommodation, the 
Government has a grant scheme to ensure that those who were brought in off 
the street, remain off the street. The majority of the twenty seven that were 
taken in are now in permanent accommodation in either social housing or the 
private renting sector. For those that are not, CBC are using the Government 
scheme ‘Next Steps’ and working with Impact Housing Association to bring in an 
empty property in Whitehaven Town Centre to help. Also working with other 
another housing association to look at providing other move on accommodation 
for those coming out of hostels.

Page 5



Councillor Jeanette Forster queried the numbers of those that responded to the 
survey and whether it truly gave the survey a full picture of the Borough. The 
Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer clarified that the reliability of the data has 
been confirmed by the relevant statisticians, but the point is taken, as 
sometimes those that need to respond don’t always respond. It was also noted 
that the consultants spoke to stakeholders who would be working with those 
groups that would need to respond. So, while there was not direct 
communication, their views were still being included. Councillor Forster also 
asked a question regarding new builds and the requirement for including the 
necessary disabled facilities. The Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer informed 
members, that there is a standard that can be included in the planning 
framework to make sure they are suitable for people to live in, regardless of 
their disability, which is being recommended in the report.

Councillor McGrath asked for an update on empty homes and wondered how 
CBC could help. The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager noted that the 
Empty Homes Strategy sits within the Housing Strategy and the council tax 
enhance payments for homes that have been empty for two years is part of 
that. The empty homes officer works with the owners of these private homes 
and have been able to bring over 100 of these back into use. There is a strategic 
discussion to be had on how to invest resources on how to bring these 
properties back into use. There are multiple properties that this might be 
possible but there is a possibility for further discussion. Members can assess 
individual situations and look at the Housing Needs Survey Report (which will be 
able to highlight individual wards for each councillor) to start discussions at a 
local level.

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman asked if and how CBC could look into older mixed 
ability communities which could address social isolation and help free up houses 
that were no longer suitable for an elderly person’s needs. The Strategic Housing 
& Social Inclusion Manager noted that there were some possibilities for 
discussions with developers who are doing something similar. Also an option for 
inter-generational models for communities as well.

Councillor Hailes also noted that there are numerous young people who want to 
buy a house but there are no grant schemes available to help them buy empty 
homes. They can afford to buy a house, but they cannot afford the upkeep and 
necessary repairs. The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager noted that 
CBC have previously brought in grant money when it was available, however, 
there is possibly a wider discussion to be had at a higher level whether through 
Town Centre Regeneration part of that offer could include an investment 
programme.

Page 6



Councillor Weir noted that more support was needed for younger people to get 
onto the property ladder, which has been impacted by the uncertainty brought 
about by Covid-19. The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager noted that 
there are schemes available to help people get a mortgage and that CBC and the 
Housing team do support these schemes as much as possible. Due to the current 
situation, it has caused CBC to become agile in their strategy so that they can 
assess the situation and plan for the next six months.

Councillor Wilson noted that CBC needs to avoid ageism, to always promote the 
need for young people who want to live and stay in Copeland but do not forget 
to include the elder generation who want to remain in their community. The 
Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer highlighted that the Housing team were 
focused on the needs of all, and while the terminology may be unsavoury at 
times, the team works at balancing, so that they do not work for one at the 
detriment of the other.

The Chair asked for further clarification regarding affordable housing within the 
report. The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager noted that each of the 
Parish surveys where the most need is, as well as further information available 
to the team, while isn’t across the whole Borough but it does highlight the areas 
with the most need. The Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer also noted that it 
highlights that Copeland is affordable in terms of low prices but that does not 
meet the needs of everyone, so it enables the Council to see where the need is.

Councillors Gemma Dinsdale and Ged McGrath suggested creating a Housing 
Task and Finish Group to discuss multiple topics and ways that councillors can 
help the Housing team and residents. This suggestion was seconded by 
Councillor James Date. The suggestion was tabled for further discussion until 
Agenda Item 9.

Councillor Meteer noted that there could be further work with Town Council’s 
to help with the empty homes issue, especially through the Community Led 
Housing Scheme. The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager informed 
the committee that they would speak to the portfolio holder for housing to 
highlight the desire to work on the empty homes issue and the interest in 
helping younger people get on the housing ladder. They will aim to feedback at 
the next OSC meeting. The Housing Strategy & Inclusion Officer informed the 
committee that there is also the Community Led Housing Hub that can link in 
with communities and provide support that the team would encourage people 
to engage with.

RESOLVED: – That,

Page 7



(a) The report be noted.
(b) The Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager speak to the portfolio 

holder for housing and report back to the committee

OSC115 Millom Hub - Verbal Update 

The Customer Services Team Leader gave the Committee an update on what is 
happening with the Copeland Offices in Millom. 

Councillor Wilson asked the Team Leader to clarify the current working 
arrangement in the current building. The Customer Services Team Leader 
explained that there is no face to face provision, and the building is closed due 
to a leak and that they are waiting for it to be deemed safe before any member 
of staff can return. Councillor Wilson also asked for clarification regarding the 
moves to new buildings. The Customer Services Team Leader clarified that 
Sellafield have proposed moving to St George’s Road (CBC’s current office) and 
CBC would be moving to Salthouse Road. Councillor Wilson noted that the 
Salthouse Road building is usually locked due to the police offices in the 
building. The Customer Services Team Leader was aware of this, but explained 
that there would be a reception area that is being planned, that will be open 
and accessible, although the details are still being worked out with County 
Council. Councillor Wilson wondered if there was an option to move CBC into 
any of the empty buildings in Millom which would allow residents the 
opportunity to get a direct response, especially during the ongoing pandemic 
and as there are multiple consultations ongoing. The Team Leader agreed to 
take that idea forward.

Councillor McGrath understands the need to move out of the current building to 
have it be renovated for Sellafield, however, notes that it is not a popular 
decision with the people of Millom to move the hub to Salthouse Road. The 
Customer Services Team Leader noted that, and clarified that because we rent 
from Cumbria County Council as our current working model, the move to 
Salthouse Road has been the most feasible option and would need further 
clarity if there has been any further proposals. As far as they are aware there is 
not. Consultation was taken at the start of the year that was mixed as to where 
CBC would move to, but clarity would need to be sought from the Corporate 
Leadership Team (CLT) as to other possible viable options. 

Councillor Wilson agreed with Councillor McGrath, the Salthouse Road option 
does not have adequate public transport access for the residents of Copeland to 
have suitable access to CBC offices. The Customer Services Team Leader noted 
that, while not a decision that they could make or provide assurances on, the 

Page 8



note would be taken to CLT. Councillor Wilson noted that all councillors would 
support the Customer Services Team Leader should it be needed.

Councillor James Date offered a similar view to Councillors Wilson and McGrath, 
highlighting that the move is not a popular decision to move the office away 
from amenities.

Councillor McGrath requested that the OSC feedback and a request for 
alternatives be sought be reported back to the portfolio holder and included 
into the report for the Executive. Councillor Wilson supported this request, 
especially as the winter months are approaching and also requested an 
opportunity to highlight this matter to the Executive as soon as possible.

RESOLVED: – That,

(a) The Corporate Services Team Leader will take the idea of finding an 
interim space for Millom Customer Services team to be based while the 
current office is unsafe.

(b) The Customer Services Team Leader will seek further clarity from CLT as 
to other possible locations for the Millom Hub, noting that the members 
would like for further investigation into the matter to reflect the 
messages they’ve had from the public.

(c) The Scrutiny Officer will report the OSC’s feedback and request for an 
alternative site be sought to the Executive and Portfolio Holder.

(d) That Millom councillor’s write a letter to the Executive to request this be 
an item of importance for the Chair to push forward.

[Councillor Sam Pollen had to leave the meeting at this point]

OSC116 Task and Finish Group Updates 

The Scrutiny Officer presented the Task and Finish Group monitoring report. The 
Scrutiny Officer is in talks with representatives from CBC Waste Services 
regarding restarting the Recycling Review due to the need to re-scope following 
the change to services brought about by Covid-19. Dates will begin to be added 
into the calendar for this to start. The Social Prescribers were contacted 
regarding the Older Persons Task and Finish Group and noted that, although 
they are not focusing on the older generation, they will be included in the work 
that the social prescribers are undertaking. The Scrutiny Officer recommends 
that the Older People task and finish group be marked as complete due to the 
restrictions placed on access to the older generation during the current climate, 
although it could be picked up again once restrictions have lifted.

Page 9



As a result of this meeting; a housing task and finish group proposed by 
Councillors Dinsdale and McGrath, as well as a Climate Change and Covid-19 
task and finish group proposed by Councillor Pollen. As Councillor Pollen had left 
the meeting, the Scrutiny Officer will gain further clarification on what is meant 
by a Covid-19 task and finish group and will email committee members with that 
clarification. The Scrutiny Officer suggested that for the Climate Change task and 
finish group the Climate Action Plan be brought before the Committee before 
the group was created.

Councillor Wilson recommended creating a Health & Wellbeing Task and Finish 
group as previously discussed with a North and South Copeland group and then 
the two be brought together to form a report for Health & Wellbeing across the 
Borough.

Clarity was sought on the topic for the Housing Task and Finish Group with an 
agreement reached that it would start as a broad term to explore all 
possibilities. Councillor Dinsdale agreed to create a presentation to give at the 
first meeting to help provide ideas for the scope.

RESOLVED – That,
 

a) The following task and finish groups be set up
a. Recycling
b. Health & Wellbeing North Copeland
c. Health & Wellbeing South Copeland
d. Housing (to be created later in the year to allow for further 

information to be gained and suitable timing)
b) the Scrutiny Officer will send out an email to all members to create the 

necessary membership required for the task and finish groups
c) Climate Change and Climate Action Plan be brought as an agenda item to 

an upcoming meeting.

OSC117 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

The Scrutiny Officer highlighted the work programme within the agenda that, 
until this meeting, was only populated with statutory agenda items. Following 
this meeting, the work programme will be updated to include the topics 
discussed, as mentioned under Agenda Item 4.

Councillor Wilson asked that the provision of lighting within our community be 
investigated to ensure that appropriate lighting is provided moving into the 

Page 10



winter months. Understanding is needed as to the responsibility for street 
lighting. This was also noted by Councillors McGrath and Date.

Councillor Hailes noted that, earlier in the year before the pandemic, there was 
a plan to engage with schools. The Scrutiny Officer agreed to follow up with idea 
with the Children Charter Board at their next meeting.

RESOLVED – That,
 

a) The following items be incorporated into the Work Programme:
a. Whitehaven Future Burial Capacity
b. Copeland Community Fund
c. Beacon Update
d. Disposal of Land
e. Council Climate and Environment Policy
f. Climate Action Plan
g. Copeland Vision 2040

b) The Section 151 Officer be asked about the possibility to have more of an 
input into reviewing the Draft Budget

c) The Chair write a letter to the Mayor and the Chief regarding the 
Independent Remuneration Panel, which may lead to an agenda item.

d) If any councillors would like to raise agenda items following the briefing 
being held the following week regarding Accommodation and Staffing, 
they will email the Chair and Scrutiny Officer.

e) The Scrutiny Officer will source the plan created to understand where 
Copeland, County and Private Street Lighting is and send the plans out to 
Councillors.

f) The Scrutiny Officer will report back on engagement with local schools at 
a future meeting of the Committee.

OSC118 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Thursday 1st October 2020 at 2pm via virtual meeting.

The Meeting closed at 4.57 pm 

Chair

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Executive 22 September 2020
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN 

 
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period. 
 
A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough. 
 
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred. 
 
Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 
Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt.
 
Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 
containing confidential or exempt information. 
 

  

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1

Executive Executive
22 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy

Executive Executive
22 September 2020 

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Whitehaven Future 
Burial Capacity

Executive Executive 
22 September 2020 

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

No Yes

Outside Bodies 
Annual Report

Council Council 
22 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

Annual Scrutiny 
Report

Council Council 
22 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

No No

Update on the Town 
Centres Programme 
– The FHSF and 
Towns Funds

Council Council 
22 September 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

P
age 14



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Copeland 
Community Fund 

Executive Executive 
13 October 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Beacon Update Executive  Executive 
13 October 2020          

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan 

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

Millom Hub Executive  OSC 
10 September 2020
Executive 
13 October 2020  

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1 

Executive  Executive
13 October 2020            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

Disposal of Land Executive Executive 
13 October 2020   

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes Yes

Council Climate and 
Environment Policy 

Council

Executive 
13 October 2020 
Council
15 December 2020

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes

P
age 15



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Climate Action Plan Executive Executive 
13 October 2020 

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes

Copeland Vision 
2040

Executive Executive 
13 October  
Council
15 December 2020

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2 

Executive  Executive
10 November 2020            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2

Executive Executive
10 November 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Constitution – 
Financial Regulations

Council Council
15 December 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Constitution 
Refresh/Update

Council Council
15 December 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

P
age 16



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Budget Consultation 
Outcome

Executive Executive
19 January 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Independent 
Remuneration Panel 
report

Council Council
February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Draft Budget
(incl Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief 
Policy, Discount and 
Premium Policy, Pay 
Policy Statement)

Council

Executive
19 January 2021

OSC
12 January 2021

Council 
9 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Budget 
(incl Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief 
Policy, Discount and 
Premium Policy, Pay 
Policy Statement)

Council Council (Prov)
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

P
age 17



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3

Executive Executive
2 February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3 

Executive  Executive
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

 P
age 18



Overview and Scrutiny Committee DATE

PORTFOLIO HOLDER
LEAD OFFICER:

Cllr David Moore
Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE?
This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the latest 
budget monitoring report to the Executive; included as Appendix A.

SUMMARY:
This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the 
2020/21 Q1 budget monitoring report presented to the Executive on 22nd 
September 2020; included as Appendix A.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the Q1 budget monitoring report to the Executive attached.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive the quarterly budget 
monitoring reports to the Executive for consideration. 

2. CONCLUSIONS

2.1. The Committee is asked to note the report.

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

3.1. Legal and Monitoring Officer’s comments are: No legal issues 
arise from the report.

3.2. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the 
attached report.

3.3. EIA Comments: N/A

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



3.4. Policy Framework: N/A

3.5. Other consultee comments, if any: N/A

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Latest quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive.

Page 20



Appendix A

2020/21 Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Report – Q1

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Mayor Mike Starkie (Portfolio Holder for Finance).
LEAD OFFICER: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources.
REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources.

SUMMARY: 

This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 1 (Q1 - to the end of 
June 2020) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue and 
Capital Budgets for the 2020/21 financial year.

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Note the 2020/21 revenue forecast outturn net overspend of £984k, (See 
Paragraph 1.6 and Appendix A); 

2. Note the summary of the revenue outturn variances set out in paragraph 
1.9); 

3. Note the revised capital budget for 2020/21 (See Paragraph1.16).

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. This report contains information on the Forecast Outturn position on 
spending against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2020/21 following 
discussions with Budget Managers.

1.2. The Net Revenue Budget agreed by Council on 10th February 2020 
for 2020/21 was £8,035k. The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
subsequent lockdown on the 23rd March 2020 and phased reopening 
of the economy has had a significant impact on local authority 
finances to date and is expected to continue to for the foreseeable 
future. In response to the pandemic additional costs have been 
incurred and/or income has reduced in the majority of some service 
areas across the Council. In response to the financial impact on local 

Page 21



authorities revenue budgets Government has announced a number 
of funding packages:

- Emergency funding towards the additional response costs 
incurred totalling £859k (£815k relating to 2020/21), Council has 
approved the receipt of this funding and the subsequent increase 
to the net budget;

- New Burdens grant funding of £130k to meet the delivery costs 
associated with awarding business rates grants to Local 
businesses, the net budget has been increased accordingly;

- An income compensation scheme for lost sales, fees and charges 
was announced; committing to fund 75% of losses over a 
threshold (the threshold for CBC is £305k); and

- An intention to allow local authorities to spread 2020/21 
collection fund deficits over the next three years; in other words 
the shortfall in council tax and business rates income expected in 
2020/21 can be spread over the following three year budgets 
from 2021/22 to 2023/24 thus ensuring no council tax and 
business rates income financial losses in 2020/21 (note this does 
not include any shortfall in business rates pooling income 
budgeted at £200k for the Council).

1.3. The resulting increase in the Council’s net budget is set out below:

£’000 Budget
Net Budget Approved by Council (Feb 2020) 8,035
Emergency COVID19 funding towards the additional 
response costs to be allocated to services in Q2 815

New Burdens grant funding of £130k to meet the delivery 
costs associated with awarding business rates grants to 
Local businesses to be allocated to the Business Rates 
service in Q2.

130

Revised Net Budget (Sep 2020) 8,980

Page 22



1.4. Following the COVID19 outbreak and resulting change in economic 
outlook for the country, there are a number of efficiencies in the 
current budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2020/21 
– 2024/25 that are unlikely to be fully delivered or met by 
Government funding. This will have a financial impact in year and will 
need to be reviewed as part of setting the 2021/22 budget and MTFS, 
these include the following items in the current Budget and MTFS:

- Net income of additional Commercial Activity of £1.35m by 2023; 
£338k in 2020/21 increasing to £1,350k by 2023/24; 

- Additional efficiency savings of £250k in 2020/21 increasing to 
£500k by 2021/22; and

- Business Rates Pooling income of £200k in 2020/21.

1.5. The forecast outturn position for Q1 is based on the best available 
information and budget managers’ estimates regarding income and 
expenditure as COVID19 impacts on their services. There is an 
underlying assumption that there will not be a second wave or local 
lockdown which may have an adverse impact on the forecast. 

1.6. The table below summarises the forecast outturn position for Q1 
against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2020/21.

£’000 Revised 
Budget Net Exp Forecast Variance

Net Expenditure on Services 8,980 962 9,764 711
Less Sources of Finance (8,980) (3,245) (8,780) 200
Total 0 (2,283) 984 984

1.7. The forecast outturn for the Council shows a net overspend of £984k. 
This is due to an overspend against service budgets of £711k and a 
shortfall in the forecast Sources of Finance of £200k relating to the 
Business Rates Pool. Business Rates income is forecast to reduce due 
to the recession, whilst any losses can be funded over the next three 
years any pooling income will impact in the year. No income is 
assumed from the Business Rates Pool for 2020/21.

Page 23



1.8. No additional Government funding has been assumed as part of the 
lost sales, fees and charges scheme. The scheme has a number of 
conditions that need to be met before a claim can be made and at 
this stage in the year we are not certain that net losses will exceed 
the Council threshold of £305k.

1.9. Service variances over £100k are summarised in the following 
paragraphs, with Appendix A showing all service areas.

Service £’000 Variance Q1
Business Support (ICT) 387
Corporate 321
Development Control 141
Park & Open Spaces 105
Refuse & Recycling 259
Revenues & Benefits 355
Other 88
Additional COVID19 Budget to be allocated in Q2 (945)
Total 711

1.10. A summary of the main variances are summarised below:

a) Business Support (ICT); the forecast overspend of £387k 
primarily relates to staffing of £126k, relating to COVID19, and 
licences of £243; some of the additional costs of licenses relate to 
COVID19 but majority is a baseline pressure from 2019/20 that the 
service is reviewing. This is expected however to be a pressure for 
the 2021/22 budget.

b) Corporate; the forecast overspend of £321k relates to 
budgeted commercial income and efficiencies that are unlikely to be 
realised in year due to COVID and the changing economic conditions.

c) Development Control; There is a forecast reduction in income 
of £141k due to COVID19.

d) Parks & Open Spaces; A forecast overspend of £105k is mainly due 
to less commercial income because of COVID19 of £30k, additional 

Page 24



costs in response to COVID19 of 36k and additional unbudgeted 
lighting costs of £30k, the Council is working with Parish Councils on 
transferring responsibility for parish lighting stock.

e) Refuse and Recycling; A one off budget increase of £200k has 
been included in the 2020/21 budget to enable the service to identify 
efficiency savings that may be realised in order to reduce the overall 
cost to the Council. Primarily due to COVID19 there are forecast 
pressures of £359k, these have been offset by savings achieved 
elsewhere in the budget resulting in a forecast outturn of £259k, the 
main pressures are:

- £173k less car parking income due to COVID19;

- £66k additional costs to enable the statutory waste collection 
service to be delivered during the COVID19 lockdown;

- £120k less commercial income due to COVID19;

f) Revenues & Benefits; an overspend of £355k is forecast, the 
majority of which relates to the impact of COVID19; additional costs 
incurred to pay business rate grants and apply reliefs (expected to be 
funded by new burdens funding). Also additional costs have been 
incurred to process new benefit claims and council tax discounts as 
many of our residents have experienced financial hardship. Budgeted 
income has also reduced as recovery has been delayed for benefit 
overpayments and court costs.

2020/21 Efficiency Plan

1.11. The 2019/20 Budget agreed by Council identified £1,425k of 
efficiencies required to balance the budget. The position against 
these for the year is set out in the table overleaf:

Page 25



Efficiencies £’000  Budget Forecast 
Outturn Variance

Commercial Income (338) 0 338
Efficiency Savings (250) 0 250
Cost of the Copeland Centre (837) (837) 0
Total (1,425) (837) 588

General Reserves

1.12. The General Reserve is part of our risk management process and is 
retained to protect the Council in the event of major unforeseen 
events as well as provide a buffer against future financial risks in the 
medium term; clearly the COVID19 pandemic is a major unforeseen 
event. The minimum level of General Reserve was agreed by Council 
in February 2020 at £2,000k. The table below sets out the changes to 
the General Fund forecast to 31st March 2021:

£’000
Balance as at 1st April 2020 (based on the unaudited 
positon)

(2,188)

Forecast Outturn for 2020/21 984
Forecast balance as at 31st March 2021 (1,204)
Minimum level agreed by Council (Feb 2020) (2,000)

1.13. The forecast General Reserve balance of £1,204k is below the 
minimum level of £2,000k agreed by Council in February 2020 which 
is not sustainable, whilst the General Reserve is sufficient to meet the 
forecast deficit in 2020/21, the Council must reinstate the reserve as 
part of the 2021/22 MTFS.  

Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS)

1.14. The MTFS 2020/21 – 2024/25 agreed by Council in February 2020 
includes a number of key assumptions that need to be revisited in 
light of COVID19, the resulting economic impact and ongoing 
financial impact on the Council. The key assumptions and budgets 

Page 26



included in the current MTFS that may be impacted on by COVID19 
are set out below:

- Net commercial income of £675k in 2021/22 rising to £1,350k 
from 2023/24. The economic downturn may reduce commercial 
opportunities;

- Efficiency savings of £500k from 2021/22;

- Growth in Council Tax income of 2.95% p.a. (est at £130k p.a.). A 
long term recession will increase council tax discount claimants 
and reduce the amount of council tax income;

- Continuation of Business Rates income above baseline of c£500k 
p.a. is assumed in the MTFS. A long term recession is likely to 
reduce this additional income.

1.15. Whilst the short term impact of COVID19 can begin to be assessed 
the longer term financial implications are unknown, much depends 
on the economic recovery and government support to local 
authorities. It is however for each local authority to consider its 
financial position and possible scenarios. 

Capital Budget

1.16. Council approved the Capital Programme for 2020/21 at its meeting 
on 10th February 2020, this has been updated below with 2019/20 
provisional outturn amendments, amendments approved by Council 
and revisions following final grant approvals, this is set out overleaf: 

Page 27



 Capital Scheme  2020/21 
 Virements 
from 1920 

outturn 

 Amendments 
following 

grant 
approvals / 

Council 
Decisions 

 Revised 
Budget for 

2020/21 

 Accommodation Strategy 1,413 1,413
 Whitehaven Cemetery Extension 240 240
 Bereavement Services 457 164 621
 Disabled Facilities Grants  600 7 108 715
 Town Centre Regeneration 1,011 63 1,074
 Development (incl LEP FHSF 
external funding) 

2,246 61 2,307

 Coastal Programme (Phase 1&2) 509 509
 Beacon Virtual Museum 250 7 257
 IT Infrastructure 1,000 (28) 972
 Whitehaven Activity Centre 1,198 1,198
 Cleator Moor Activity Centre 247 247
 St Bees Ramp  300 300
 Commercial Investments 5,000 5,000
 ISH Project (Council July 2020) 0 2,250 2,250
 Total 14,471 213 2,419 17,103

1.17. Budget managers are in the process of reviewing the capital 
programme to in light of changes as a result of COVID19, an update 
will be provided to the Executive with subsequent recommendations 
to Council. 

Treasury Management

1.18. The Treasury Management function supports the overall objectives 
and priorities of the Council, by the use of effective treasury 
management techniques. The aim is to manage risks and ensure 
there are sufficient cash resources and long-term borrowings to 
finance the Council’s activities and capital investment programme 
whilst balancing this to the secondary objective of trying to minimise 
the costs of the net interest budget. 

1.19. Long term borrowing remains at £5m as at Q1 (£5m at 31/3/20) and 
investments are £60.113m as at 30th June. There is a net interest cost 
to the Council, this is due to interest on the loan being c7.5% and 

Page 28



investment interest being around 0.35% included in the Council’s 
budget.  

1.20. The Council undertook no new borrowing in Q1 and is not expected 
to undertake any further long-term borrowing during 2020/21 in 
accordance with the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy. 

2. CONCLUSIONS

2.1. The recommendations allow the preparation of the statutory 
financial statements of the Council.

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

3.1. Legal/ Monitoring Officer’s Comments are: No legal issues arise from 
the report. The report sets out the forecast financial outturn for the 
financial year 2020/21.

3.2. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are contained within the report.

3.3. EIA Comments: Not applicable. 

3.4. Policy Framework: Not applicable.

3.5. Other Consultee Comments, if any: None.

4. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

4.1. Contained within the report

5. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE 
THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED?

5.1. The proposals will be managed by Director of Financial Resources.

6. WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS 
REPORT?

6.1. Contained within the body of the report.

List of Appendices 

Page 29



Appendix A: 2020/21 Budget Monitoring Forecast Outturn by Service

List of Background Documents:

None

 

Page 30



Appendix A
2020/21 Budget Monitoring Forecast Outturn by Service

Service Budget Net Exp Forecast Variance
Beacon Museum 347,603 (110,450) 373,679 26,076
Building Control 89,559 38,287 107,874 18,315
Business Support 916,039 536,260 1,302,799 386,760
Communications 80,408 30,525 84,120 3,712
Copeland Community Fund 0 207,019 0 0
Corporate (103,657) 263,755 217,375 321,032
Customer Services 306,083 77,181 323,513 17,430
Democratic Services 423,767 105,407 414,137 (9,630)
Development Control (26,977) 46,281 114,102 141,079
Dir Corp Serv & Comm Strategy 289,821 64,324 289,821 0
Economic Development 217,749 (414,851) 301,005 0
Elections 120,684 (59,353) 124,418 3,734
Environmental Health 516,093 34,108 605,429 89,336
Financial Services 862,609 (73,340) 838,917 (23,692)
Human Resources 321,057 54,235 319,580 (1,477)
Internal Audit 132,256 15,937 63,749 (68,507)
Legal & Procurement Services 195,604 45,336 195,604 0
Nuclear (10,642) 60,083 (10,642) 0
Park & Open Spaces (68,062) (99,200) 37,338 105,400
Property & Estates 252,158 258,073 302,778 50,620
Refuse & Recycling 1,978,226 693,774 2,237,059 258,833
Revenues & Benefits 480,158 (679,910) 835,643 355,485
Strategic Housing 525,824 (177,553) 515,494 (10,330)
Strategic Planning 178,330 46,326 170,054 (8,276)
Additional Budget to be allocated to services (945,000) 0 0 (945,000)
Grand Total 7,079,690 962,255 9,763,845 710,899

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



OSC011020

1

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE FOR QUARTER ONE OF 2020-21

EXECUTIVE MEMBER:  Cllr David Moore

LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, 
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy

REPORT AUTHOR: Gillian Butterworth, 
Performance and Risk Management Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE? 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the Executive in ensuring that 
the Council complies with its duties of Best Value and value for Money.  It also 
has a key role to play in promoting and monitoring good performance 
management throughout the Council.   

 RECOMMENDATION:

a) Note key progress and performance against the strategic ambitions.

1.        INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Executive monitors achievement of the Council’s strategic ambitions 
and key performance targets through the Performance Management 
and Improvement Framework.

1.2 Ordinarily, through the framework, the quarterly report to the Executive 
would outline progress of the Corporate Strategy Action Plan, Key 
Performance Indicators and external data sets.  However, in March 2020 
the Council enacted its Business Continuity Plan in response the Covid19 
global pandemic, which meant that for the majority of Quarter one, the 
Council experienced significant disruption to normal service delivery and 
business operations. 
 

1.3 The 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy was agreed by Full Council in 
December 2019 and was due to be launched in April 2020.  At the time 
of reporting, the Corporate Strategy and Action Plan are being revised to 

Page 33

Agenda Item 9



OSC011020

2

incorporate lessons learned and future priorities following the Covid 
Pandemic.  

1.4 This quarterly report will present the outturn of KPIs for Quarter one and 
external data sets of interest to the Executive. 

2. CORPORATE PERFORMACNE

2.1 During the Quarter, in what were unprecedented times for businesses 
and communities across the globe, the Council maintained critical 
service delivery, to a high standard whilst meeting increased levels of 
demand. This was made possible by commitment and adaptability of 
both front-line and back office staff. 

2.2 After the first few month of the Covid crisis, our Communications Teams 
produced an infographic to show levels of demand and response on key 
and statutory services.  
 Appendix-A Infographic shows critical service delivery up to May 2020.   

2.3 During the quarter, changes were made to the Constitution which 
enabled the Council to host virtual meetings and uphold democratic and 
decision making processes and all required statutory returns were made 
to government and regulatory office (52 returns made). 

 
2.4 Staff adjusted to new and remote ways of working and were able to 

maintain momentum on key strategic activity including,
 Bid submitted to the Future Highstreets Fund FHSF 
 Bid submitted to the Opening the Highstreets Safely Fund
 Funding secured against Phase 2 of the Connecting Cumbria’s Hidden 

Coast Initiative
 Finalisation the PFI buy out and progress of the Accommodation 

Strategy.
 Launch of the Shop Local Campaign 

2.5 Vital support to vulnerable residents was sustained through the Strategic 
Housing functions and Social Investment Programme.  Additionally the 
Council played an active role in the establishment and running of the 
Community Resilience Hub which responded directly to requests 681 

Page 34



OSC011020

3

requests for emergency food and or prescription collection support from 
Copeland residents between April and July.
(CCC- MATS Impacts of Covid by District)

2.6 The Councils response to the pandemic was well received by the public 
and partners alike and this was expressed in the increased number of 
compliments received by the council which rose by 192% compared to 
the same quarter last year.  
(Q1_2019/20 = 26.  Q1 2020/21 = 76)

3.0 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

3.1 At the time of reporting, KPI data was available for 22 of the 24 KPIs that 
the Executive would usually review. Of these, 

 86% of KPIs were on target at the end of the quarter (19 out of 22).  

This can be broken down to show that, 
 100% of ‘corporately owned’ KPIs met their target. (12).
 70% of non-corporately owned’ KPIs met their target (7 out of 10 

where a result is available.)

 55% of KPIs performed equal to or better than the same quarter last 
year (12 out of 22 where comparisons could be made).

3.2 Ten KPIs did not show increased performance when compared to the 
same quarter last year, however eight of these did hit their expected 
target for this quarter. 

3.3 The two KPIs that did not hit the quarterly target and did not improve on 
last year’s performance were KPI 4 Number of new homes built and KPI 
19 Residual waste produced per household (kg), both of which are non-
corporately owned KPIs.

3.4 Table 1 shows ‘at a glance’ which KPIs met their quarterly targets. 
Full details are listed in Appendix B.

Page 35



OSC011020

4

Table 1

Corporately owned Performance Indicators Target 
met?

KPI 8 % Non-domestic Rates Collected

KPI 10 Speed of processing - new HB claims

KPI 11 Speed of processing - new CTR claims

KPI 12 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims

KPI 13 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims

KPI 14 % Homeless relief cases resolved in statutory timeframe

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse Project – feedback and satisfaction

KPI 17 % Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale

KPI 21 % 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks

KPI 22 % 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 23 % 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 24 % planning appeals dismissed

NON- corporately owned Performance Indicator Target 
met?

KPI 1 % Council Tax collected

KPI 2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use ?

KPI 3 Number of new homes approved

KPI 4 Number of new homes built

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT

KPI 6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built

KPI 7 External funding for Economic Development Secured (£)

KPI 9 Number of people supported with employability and skills

KPI 16 % complaints resolved at stage one

KPI 18 % Household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting  

KPI 19 Kg Residual waste produced per household 

KPI 20 % Council TAX collected using Direct Debit payment method ?

Page 36



OSC011020

5

3.5 In support of the three KPIs that did not meet target, the following 
context is offered,

 KPI 3 New homes approved
This KPI is a ‘non-corporately owned’ KPI as it is reliant on the number of 
approvals submitted. Although target was not met, it is encouraging that 
the number of new homes approved in Quarter one 20/21 was greater 
than that of 19/20 (18 and 26 respectively).  
The annual target for the KPI has been reduced from 300 to 200 which is 
consistent with the finding and recommendations of the Strategic 
Housing Market Needs Assessment (2019).

 KPI 4 New homes built
This KPI is a ‘non-corporately owned’ KPI as it is dependent on house 
building completions.  13 completions recorded in the quarter 
represents a four year low for Quarter one activity. It is reasonable to 
assert that the Covid crisis impacted on the number of completions.

 KPI 19 Residual waste produced per household (kg)
As a result of changed behaviours during the Covid 19 lockdown, there 
were variations to the norm in the amount and type of household waste 
collected, more household recycling and residual waste was collected 
but less green waste collected.
Also if interest, the volume of green waste collected was lower than 
expected in the quarter due to annual collections resuming later than 
planned and collection capacity being limited to monthly as opposed to 
two-weekly, as a result,  this impacted the overall recycling rates for the 
quarter.

Table 2 Compares waste collection data for Quarter one 19/20 and 20/21

Table 2
Data set Q1 

2020/21
Q1 

2019/20
Difference

Kerbside Recycling Tonnes Collected 1151 859 292
Green Waste Tonnes Collected 1375 2040 -665
Residual Tonnes Collected 4668 4431 237

Page 37



OSC011020

6

Recycling Rate 38% 44% -6%
  (Source: Waste dataflow)

4.0 SNAPSHOT OF EXTERNAL DATA SETS

4.1 As a background to the strategic ambitions, the Executive may also find 
the following data comparison table of interest, as it show comparisons 
for the labour market and socioeconomic indicators, from Quarter one 
last year to the same period this year.
Table 3

Data Set Q1  
2020/21

Q1   
2019/20

Difference

Number of empty business premises 
within the borough.

203 181 22

Number of new businesses. 28 40 -12

Claimants Count
(JSA claimants plus UC claimants in 
searching for work group)

2015 1255 760

Claimants Rate (% working age pop) 4.8% 2.9% 1.9%
Job Postings 355 346 11
Number of Domestic Violence 
Incidents with a repeat victim.

135 119 16

4.2 The number of empty business premises in Copeland rose by 22 
compared to the same quarter in 19/20.  The overall rate of empty 
hereditaments for Copeland was 8.1 % at the end of June 2020, which 
was just below the rate for Cumbria as a whole (8.2%).
(Source – Cumbria Intelligence Observatory Covid-19 economy tracker)

4.3 The number of new business start-ups had decreased by 12 from 40 in 
Quarter one 19/20 to 28 in Quarter one 20/21.  In June, 15 new 
businesses started up, this was 6 more than the previous month and the 
same as in June 2019.  Across all the English districts the median level of 
starts registered in June 2020 was 61. This growth rate ranks Copeland 
at 50 out of the 326 English districts.
(BankSearch-Small businesses taking out a business banking product for the first 
time)

Page 38



OSC011020

7

4.4   Copeland saw an increase of 760 claimants in Quarter one 20/21 when 
compared to the same quarter last year.  This shows that by the end of 
June 2020, 4.8% of the working age population in Copeland were in 
receipt of Job Seekers Allowance or Universal Credit, this rate was just 
above the Cumbrian average of 4.7% but below the English districts 
average which was 6.7%.
The claimant rate increased by 1.9% in Copeland from Quarter one 
19/20 to Quarter one 20/21, this is much lower than the average 
increase recorded across all English districts of 3.7%.

4.5 Copeland experienced a 13.5% decrease in the number of job postings 
when measured against the postings rate pre-covid (March 2020), this is 
the lowest percentage decrease in job postings in Quarter one of all the 
Cumbrian districts.  The highest decrease in job postings was seen in 
Carlisle where the rate fell by 47.9% between March and June 2020.

4.6 Out of 30,600 eligible employments in Copeland there were 6800 
furloughed employments at the end of Quarter one, giving a furlough 
take-up rate of 22%.  This compares to 32% in Cumbria and 31% 
nationally.  
South Lakeland (40%) and Eden (39%) had two of the highest furlough 
rates in the UK whilst at the other end of the scale, Copeland (22%) and 
Barrow (23%) had two of the lowest rates nationally.
(Source: Cumbria Intelligence Observatory-Labour Market Briefing

4.7 Incidents of Domestic Violence involving a repeat victim.
There were 314 incidents of domestic violence reported in Copeland in 
Quarter one, of which 135 involved a repeat victim (43%). 
By comparison there were 253 incidents with 119 repeat victims in the 
same quarter in 2019/20 (47%)

5.0 CONCLUSIONS

5.1 Throughout the quarter, the Councils strategic and operational priorities 
were realigned to the Business Continuity Plan, including incident 
management, critical service delivery and response to new and 
emerging legislative measures. Despite this, 86% of KPIs were on target.

Page 39

https://cumbria.gov.uk/elibrary/Content/Internet/536/671/4674/17217/17224/440541426.PDF


OSC011020

8

5.2 At the time of reporting, the Council has made good progress on 
business recovery and is reviewing some policy areas to include the 
lessons learned and relationships forged through the collective response 
to the initial months of the Covid pandemic.  

5.3 The 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy launch was paused in Quarter one 
due to the Covid pandemic and it is now expected by the end of Quarter 
two. The strategic ambitions will continue to centre on, delivery of high 
quality public services, investment in and diversification of the economy, 
social inclusion and healthy communities.  

6.          STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 
6.1 Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from this report

6.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report provides a progress 
update to the Executive on key deliverables arising from the Corporate 
Strategy. There has been some interruption to achievement and 
reporting due to the suspension of business as usual in March whilst the 
Council was responding to the declared emergency of the global 
pandemic. Any legal issues arising from any individual key deliverables 
will be dealt with as appropriate. 

6.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2020/21 Budget and 
Capital Plan underpins the Corporate Strategy

6.4 EIA Comments:  The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which 
performance is measured have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.  
Individual projects and partnership delivery against the Corporate 
Delivery Plan are subject to provide EIAs.

6.5 Policy Framework:  Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set 
down in the Council’s Constitution. This report directly reports on the 
delivery of the Corporate Strategy and associated documents.

5.  APPENDICIES  Appendix A – Service Delivery Infographic May 2020
Appendix B - KPI Report for Q1 of 2020/21

Page 40



Appendix A – Business critical functions maintained in from March-May during Covid19 pandemic

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Key Performance 
Indicator Value at end 

of Q1
Target for 

Q1
Value Vs 

Target

Was the 
target 
met?

Trend Analysis and notes from Managers ANNUAL 
target for this 
KPI

KPI 1 Percentage of 
Council Tax collected 28.73% 23.79% 4.94% 28% collected in Q1 20/21 

compared to 29% in Q1 19/20
98%

KPI 3 Number of new 
homes approved 26 homes 50 -24 Compared to 18 new homes 

approved in Q1 19-20
200 homes

KPI 4 Number of new 
homes built 13 homes 35 -22 Compared to 43 new homes built 

in Q1 19-20
140 homes

KPI 5 Number of 
affordable homes built 16 homes 3.5 12.5 No affordable homes were built in 

Q1 19/20
20 homes

KPI 6 Number of 
aspirational homes built 12 homes 5 7 Compared to 21 aspirational 

family  homes built  in Q1 19-20
21 homes

KPI 7 External funding for 
Economic Development 
Secured £1056649.00 £125000.00 £931649.00

£1056649.00 match funding secured in Q1 
20/21 through CLEP against Whitehaven 

FHSF.
In the same quarter last year £1069499.00 

was secured from MCHLG against 
Cumbria’s Hidden Coasts.

£500000.00

KPI 8  Percentage of Non-
domestic Rates Collected 81.85% 24.90% 56.95%

81% collected in Q1 20/21 
compared to 77% in Q1 19/20

99.6%

Key Performance Indicator report for Quarter one of 2020/21                                                                             Appendix B

P
age 43



2

Key Performance 
Indicator Value at end 

of Q1
Target for 

Q1
Value Vs 

Target

Was the 
target 
met?

Trend Analysis and notes from Managers ANNUAL 
target for this 
KPI

KPI 8 Local people 
supported with 
employability and skills

37 people 
supported 15 22

37 people supported in Q1 20/21 
compared to 12 in Q1 19/20

65 people

KPI 10 Speed of 
processing – 
new HB claims 11 days 18 days 7

Compared to an average of 10 
days to process in the same 
quarter last year, however this is 
still well above the target and 
national standard of 18 days.

18 days

KPI 11 Speed of 
processing – 
new CTR claims

17 days 18 days 1
Compared to an average of 23 
days to process in the same 
quarter last year

18 days

KPI 12  Speed of 
processing - changes of 
circumstances for HB 
claims

7 days 10 days 3

Compared to an average of 6 days 
to process in the same quarter 
last year

10 days

KPI 13 Speed of 
processing - changes of 
circumstances for CTR 
claims

7 days 10 3

Compared to an average of 11 
days to process in the same 
quarter last year

10 days

KPI 14 Homeless relief 
cases 95% 90% 5% Compared to 93% in the same 

quarter last year 
90%

P
age 44



3

Key Performance 
Indicator Value at end 

of Q1
Target for 

Q1
Value Vs 

Target

Was the 
target 
met?

Trend Analysis and notes from Managers ANNUAL 
target for this 
KPI

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse 
Project

100% 90% 10%

This KPI measures satisfaction 
with advice and support given 
through our domestic abuse and 
support work. Compared to 95% 
satisfaction in Q1 2019.

90%

KPI 16 Percentage of 
complaints resolved at 
stage one

95% 90% 5%
Compared to 96% in the same 
quarter last year.  

90%

KPI 17 Percentage of 
Freedom of information 
requests resolved within 
timescale

86% 85% 1%

Compared to 81% resolved in 
timeframe in the same quarter in 
2019

90%

KPI 18 Percentage of 
household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling and 
composting

37.60% 37.00% .60%

Compares to 43.75% in the same 
quarter last year.

37%

KPI 19 Residual 
Household Waste 
produced per household

129.94 kg 100 kg 29.94 kg
Compared to 132Kg produced per 
household in Q1_19/20

100 kg

KPI 21 Percentage of 
'major' planning 100% 65.00% 35% 100 % achieved in both Q1_19 and 

Q1_20.
65%

P
age 45



4

Key Performance 
Indicator Value at end 

of Q1
Target for 

Q1
Value Vs 

Target

Was the 
target 
met?

Trend Analysis and notes from Managers ANNUAL 
target for this 
KPI

applications determined 
within 13 weeks

KPI 22 Percentage of 
planning 'minor' planning 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%

Compared to 97% in the same 
quarter last year

80.00%

KPI 23 Percentage of 
'other' applications 
determined within 8 
weeks

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%

Compared to 98% in the same 
quarter last year

80.00%

KPI 24 Percentage of 
planning appeals 
dismissed 

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%
100 % achieved in both Q1_19 and 
Q1_20

80.00%

 

P
age 46



 

Page 1 of 1

Task and Finish Group Monitoring

Task and Finish 
Group

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group

Progress Next Step Estimated 
Completion 
Date

Recycling Review TBC Membership is being 
confirmed.

Initial meeting will scope topic and 
identify outcomes and elect Chair of the 
group.

TBC

Health and Wellbeing 
North Copeland

Cllr John Kane Membership is being 
confirmed.

Initial meeting will scope topic and 
identify outcomes.

TBC

Health and Wellbeing 
South Copeland

Cllr Fee Wilson Membership is being 
confirmed.

Initial meeting will scope topic and 
identify outcomes.

TBC

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Standing Items

Item Corporate Plan Priority Purpose Lead Officer

Executive Forward Plan All To identify any forthcoming 
items which the Committee 
may consider.

Chief Executive

Update from Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee

Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities

To receive an update from 
the Cumbria Health and 
Scrutiny Committee from 
the nominated Copeland 
representative.

Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Update from the Single 
Table Trade Union Group 
(STTUG) Representative

A Commercial Council To receive an update from 
the Single Table Trade Union 
Group (STTUG) from the 
nominated Overview and 
Scrutiny representative. 

Human Resources Manager

Housing A Place for Growth and 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities

To receive any reports from 
the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager.

Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager

Task and Finish Group 
Updates

All To update the Committee on 
the progress of Task and 
Finish Groups.

Scrutiny Officer

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work 
Programme

A Commercial Council For the Committee to plan 
their work for the municipal 
year.

Scrutiny Officer

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 11



Agenda Items for Committee Meetings

Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter one of 2020/21

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

1st October 
2020

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter one of 
2020/21

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2020/21

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

26th 
November 
2020

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter two of 
2020/21

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

P
age 50



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

Nuclear Position 
Statements

All Since 2015, the Council has 
maintained a suite of 
Nuclear Position 
Statements. These 
Statements ensure that the 
Council’s interactions with 
the nuclear sector 
consistently reflect the 
Council’s agreed positon on 
nuclear matters.

Chief Executive

17th 
December 
2020
12th January 
2021
(Special)

Draft Budget All The Mayor will present their 
Draft Budget proposals for 
the year 2021/2022

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

4th February 
2021

1st April 
2021

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2020/21

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

P
age 51



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2020/21

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Items to be programmed into the OSC Work Programme 2020/21

 Whitehaven Future Burial Capacity  Council Climate and Environment Policy
 Copeland Community Fund  Climate Action Plan
 Beacon Update  Copeland Vision 2040
 Disposal of Land

P
age 52


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2020
	4 Executive Forward Plan
	8 2020/21 Finance Report - Quarter 1
	9 Corporate Performance Report for Quarter 1 of 2020-2021
	Appendix A - Critical Functions Delivered March-May infographic
	Appendix B - KPIs for Q1 of 2020-21

	10 Task and Finish Group Updates
	11 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

